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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Good morning.  I am

          3  Council Member Philip Reed from the 8th District,

          4  and this is the Consumer Affairs Committee hearing.

          5  Thank you for joining us today.

          6                 This morning, we will be taking

          7  testimony on Intro. No. 257, a local law that would

          8  amend the City's Administrative Code to prohibit the

          9  use of mobile telephones in public performance

         10  places.

         11                 I would like to begin by recognizing

         12  my colleagues. To my left is Council Member Barron

         13  from Brooklyn, and on the other side is Council

         14  Member Koppell from the Bronx.  Council Member

         15  Addabbo, who I wanted to point out, was here on

         16  time.  Thank you very much.  That was what I was

         17  trying to build up to.

         18                 One of the greatest rewards of living

         19  in the City of New York is the culture that

         20  surrounds us.  In every community, at every price

         21  level we can choose from a dazzling selection of

         22  films, plays, lectures and other performances.  On

         23  any given evening, New Yorkers can see a first run

         24  motion picture, a world class Broadway musical, or

         25  an avant- garde performance art piece.  We are truly
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          2  lucky to be surrounded by so many talented artists

          3  and rich cultural institutions.

          4                 Over the last few years however, the

          5  misuse of cell phones has made it more difficult to

          6  enjoy the arts in New York. In movie houses and

          7  Broadway theaters alike, some audience members are

          8  making calls, answering ringing phones, and even

          9  having prolonged conversations on their cell phones,

         10  all the while films and plays are going on.  In a

         11  few notable situations, irritated stage actors have

         12  stopped their own shows to scold audience members

         13  who were using cell phones.  One can only imagine

         14  that movie actors would do the same, if it were

         15  physically possible.

         16                 This legislation is intended to

         17  assist those actors and the theater managers and

         18  patrons, who are tired of doing battle with cell

         19  phone users during performances.  Put it another

         20  way, this legislation is intended to help New

         21  Yorkers enjoy New York more thoroughly.  I believe

         22  that this is a goal that we can all support.

         23                 We will be taking testimony today on

         24  the first version of the bill.  I assume that many

         25  of you will have suggestions to refine the
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          2  legislation, and in fact, we have already

          3  anticipated many of the comments we expect to hear.

          4  We look forward to integrating those comments into

          5  the bill and collaborating with you as we continue

          6  this process.

          7                 During today's hearing we will

          8  receive live testimony from the Administration,

          9  members of the entertainment industry, community

         10  representatives, and patrons of the arts.  We thank

         11  you all for joining us.

         12                 For the record, I would also like to

         13  note that we have received written testimony from

         14  two interested parties. First, the National Cellular

         15  Telecommunications, an Internet Association, which

         16  represents AT&T, Verizon, T- Mobile and a whole list

         17  of other people.  And they have elected not to join

         18  us today, but have sent a written statement.

         19                 We have also received written

         20  testimony in support of the bill from the 92nd

         21  Street Y, a major local cultural institution that

         22  has four performance venues.  Unfortunately, a

         23  representative from the Y was unable to join us, due

         24  to a scheduling conflict.  We are happy to have

         25  these and other written comments, and will, of
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          2  course, consider them appropriately.

          3                 Once again, thank you for coming this

          4  morning to discuss this legislation.  We will begin

          5  the live testimony with a representative from the

          6  Department of Environmental Protection. Thank you.

          7                 MR. STURCKEN:  Good morning, Chairman

          8  Reed and members of the Committee.  My name is

          9  Charles Sturcken.  I am Special Counsel for the New

         10  York City Department of Environmental Protection.

         11  On behalf of Commissioner Chris Ward, thank you for

         12  this opportunity to testify on Intro. No. 257.

         13  Commissioner Ward shares with the sponsor a view

         14  that members of the public who use cell phones

         15  inappropriately create an unnecessary nuisance that

         16  can distract and annoy both other audience members

         17  and performers. Intro. 257 addresses this issue by

         18  amending Chapter II of Title 24 of the New York City

         19  Administrative Code, a chapter commonly referred to

         20  as the Noise Code.  Intro. 257 would create a

         21  prohibition on the use of mobile phones in a place

         22  of public performance.  Intro. 257 also requires the

         23  owners and the managers of public performance spaces

         24  to post notices, advising patrons of the prohibition

         25  of the use of cell phones.  Intro. 257 provides that
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          2  failure to comply with these provisions shall be

          3  punishable by a fine not to exceed $50.

          4                 The DEP's comments on the legislation

          5  fall into three categories.  Comments on the

          6  definition of the terms used in this bill, comments

          7  on the enforceability of the bill, and finally, some

          8  comments on the methods other than issuing civil

          9  summonses that might be successful at deterring the

         10  unnecessary and disruptive use of cell phones in

         11  theaters, concert halls, and other similar spaces.

         12                 I hope the sponsor understands that

         13  our comments on this legislation do not reflect on

         14  the laudable intention of the sponsor in controlling

         15  the behavior of those members of the public that use

         16  their cell phones in a way that disturbs their

         17  fellow patrons.  DEP supports the efforts of

         18  Chairman Reed and other witnesses this morning, to

         19  draw attention to a quality of life issue in New

         20  York City that involve the thoughtless use of cell

         21  phones, but the legislative course to curb this

         22  behavior is not the answer.

         23                 With respect to the term mobile

         24  telephones use in places of public performance, DEP

         25  offers the followings comments, as you said, they
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          2  are, I am sure, anticipated and you have heard them,

          3  but I will repeat them for the record.

          4                 1.  The Law Department has advised me

          5  that the definition of mobile telephones used in

          6  Intro. 257 differs somewhat from the definition of

          7  that term used in the New York State Vehicle and

          8  Traffic Law, or VTL.  The Committee may wish to

          9  examine the VTL definition so that local law is not

         10  in conflict with New York State law.

         11                 The word use is defined in Intro. 257

         12  to mean talking or listening on a mobile phone.  The

         13  ringing, or other audible signaling, of  a cell

         14  phone is not included in the definition of use.

         15  Obviously, a ringing cell phone can disrupt a

         16  concert or performance as easily as an audible

         17  conversation carried on via cell phone.

         18  Place of public performance is defined such that the

         19  definition may include outdoor arenas, stadiums and

         20  concert halls.  Especially with respect to sports

         21  events held outdoors, the use of cell phones at

         22  outdoor performance does not usually create the same

         23  disturbance as it does at venues within a building,

         24  although, the subjectivity of the patrons are at

         25  risk also for the person sitting next to you.

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 A word about enforceability.  If the

          3  purpose of the legislation is to determine a

          4  specific type of behavior, and the key factor in

          5  deterring that behavior is successful enforcement,

          6  the Notices of Violation carrying civil penalties,

          7  then the success or failure of the legislation

          8  depends on enforcement. Unfortunately, Intro. 257

          9  poses significant challenges to enforcement that

         10  will diminish the effectiveness of the bill at

         11  deterring the inappropriate use of cell phones at

         12  concert halls, theaters, and similar venues.

         13                 The New York City Noise Code can be

         14  enforced by either the New York City police

         15  officers, or the enforcement staff from DEP's

         16  Division of Air and Noise Enforcement.  For a

         17  violation to be issued, the DEP inspector or the

         18  NYPD officer must actually witness the violation.

         19  DEP's noise enforcement staff is relatively small,

         20  numbering approximately forty inspectors whose work

         21  is predominantly complaint- driven.  Depending on

         22  the number of complaints received, the workload

         23  created by this legislation could be very

         24  significant.  If DEP were to divert its inspectors

         25  from other noise enforcement duties to monitor cell
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          2  phone use at the numerous events captured by the

          3  definition place of public performance, enforcement

          4  of other provisions of the City's Noise Code could

          5  suffer dramatically.  However, in the event that

          6  Intro. 257 were enacted, and DEP ignored cell phone

          7  complaints, the public might quickly understand that

          8  the prohibitions created in this legislation were

          9  not meaningful and that compliance was unnecessary.

         10  DEP asks the Committee to consider that creating

         11  prohibitions in local law that are not enforceable,

         12  and publicly understood not to be enforceable, may

         13  not be effective at changing behavior, which

         14  disrupts the City's performance spaces.

         15                 A more effective way to determined

         16  inappropriate behavior may be for the owners or

         17  managers of performance spaces to exercise their

         18  private rights to remove patrons who engage in

         19  disruptive activities, such as the unnecessary use

         20  of cell phones. Owners and managers of performance

         21  spaces may legitimately expect a certain standard of

         22  conduct from their patrons.  By informing patrons in

         23  advance of the certainty that they will be removed

         24  if they use a cell phone during a performance owners

         25  and managers of performance venues may themselves be

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  in the best position to protect their patrons.

          3  Creating a prohibition in the Noise Code that is

          4  difficult to enforced, at best, is an option that

          5  may seem worthy as an expression of civic concern,

          6  but may not actually achieve the intended results.

          7  For the reasons just mentioned, DEP opposes the

          8  legislation.  However, we do look forward to working

          9  with the Council and other stakeholders on the best

         10  methods to determined a behavior that we all can

         11  agree is often rude and avoidable.

         12                 On behalf of Commissioner Ward, thank

         13  you for this opportunity to comment on the

         14  legislation, and I would be happy to answer any

         15  questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very

         17  much, Mr. Sturcken.  I think, I have seen when I go

         18  to the theaters, there oftentimes signs, I think

         19  anyway, that say no smoking, and underneath it, it

         20  talks about the Administrative Code that that law

         21  falls under.  Is it the Administration's position

         22  that they ought to take those signs down because

         23  that is hard to enforced?

         24                 MR. STURCKEN:  I think, Mr. Chair,

         25  that that is a more enforceable situation in

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  restaurants.  And there - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  No, I am not

          4  speaking in restaurants, you see them in theaters

          5  and other places.

          6                 MR. STURCKEN:  We would agree that

          7  this legislation, or if any legislation wants to

          8  mandate that signage be put up in premises, that is

          9  okay.  If you have an unenforceable law, from our

         10  perspective in the Noise Code that we can respond

         11  actively to the prohibition, which is embodied in

         12  the sign hanging in a private establishment, it

         13  would be, it would not be the right thing to do for

         14  legislation.

         15                 However, we do the same thing in the

         16  Department when we have a situation where people

         17  serve water in restaurants, without asking.  And the

         18  staff of a restaurant serves water, that has been

         19  outlawed in the City of New York for 14 to 16 years.

         20    And yet, the public is not aware of it.  However,

         21  based on a complaint, and there is no signage

         22  posted, sometimes we put little signs on the tables,

         23  it is hard for us to respond in a timely manner to

         24  get there to witness this.  Based on the civil

         25  summons that is issued, you must actually witness
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          2  this.  Based on the civil summons that is issued,

          3  you must actually witness this.  So if the health

          4  inspector, and I do not want to speak for the Health

          5  Department, were to come to an establishment and see

          6  people smoking where it was prohibited, they would

          7  issue violations.

          8                 Similarly in the cell phone context,

          9  or if an owner was permitting smoking against the

         10  rules, the City could dispatch people there and it

         11  might be a repetitive kind of behavior that is

         12  permitted by the establishment.  Here you have an

         13  individual acting, you know certainly not with the

         14  complicity of an owner of the theater or performance

         15  space, and to have our inspectors respond in a

         16  timely manner to catch that cell phone ringing, is

         17  not something that the City can expect.  I wish that

         18  were true.  But the alternative to that would be, as

         19  I mention in my testimony, to sort of station, you

         20  know, noise police in theaters.

         21                 And presently, I said we have a staff

         22  of 40 that work very effectively to enforce the

         23  noise laws in the City.  Most of our complaints come

         24  noisy bars, restaurants and from air conditioning

         25  devices.  And that makes up the bulk of complaints.
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          2  So as I said, being complaint driven, we would have

          3  to await for a complaint to come in, dispatch

          4  somebody to the performance base, not knowing what

          5  distance that was, to try to enforce the law.  I do

          6  not think it is a realistic way to enforce this.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Well it does not

          8  sound to me the worse tour of duty to have to go to

          9  the theater or the movies.

         10                 MR. STURCKEN:  I would like that tour

         11  sometimes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  You know for those

         13  40 people that are overworked as your staff, that

         14  might be some relief, it's air conditioned, you

         15  know.  You have got a lot of breaks out there, but I

         16  appreciate your comments.  Thank you.

         17                 MR. STURCKEN:  Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Are there any

         19  other questions of my colleagues?  Council Member

         20  Barron.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I have a

         22  couple of questions.  One, so, like in our

         23  neighborhood sometimes, when the noise level is

         24  high, and we want some enforcement there.  You are

         25  saying that DEP or the Police Department or whomever
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          2  is going to do the enforcement, they would actually

          3  have to witness, in all cases, they would have to

          4  witness this themselves.  Are there any cases that

          5  you know of where enforcement occurs and could there

          6  be some other way of enforcement where they would

          7  not have to actually witness, and has that ever

          8  happened that you know of, where enforcement did

          9  occur and they did not actually witness, but they

         10  had a third party witness it, or something of that

         11  nature?

         12                 MR. STURCKEN:  As far as Noise Code,

         13  in the context of the civil nature of the

         14  proceeding, which is held before the Environmental

         15  Control Board, you have to have the inspector

         16  witness the activity for an administrative law judge

         17  to find the person, the perpetrator in violation.

         18  Outside of the civil context like that, in the

         19  criminal statutes, there is a different route to go

         20  and a different burden for the enforcing entity.

         21  But I will give you a similar example of

         22  enforcement, we had to work in the last couple of

         23  years, and we have done it very effectively, because

         24  of the inability respond instantly.  We have had to

         25  work more creatively with the Police Department and
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          2  with the Community Boards to make sure noisy bars,

          3  when you know it is a repetitive noise between

          4  Thursday and Sunday nights, we do go out because we

          5  know the spots where it is going to occur.  And when

          6  we get complaints, we work with the Community Board

          7  and the local precinct to get there to stop the

          8  noise.

          9                 Similarly with horn honking.  Horn

         10  honking as been against the law in the City of New

         11  York when it is unnecessary to avoid a hazard for a

         12  long time.  There are signs posted in different

         13  locations around the City where people honk their

         14  horn, and it is now a $150 fine.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Right.

         16                 MR. STURCKEN:  However, the same

         17  thing would occur that if we get a complaint, it is

         18  a transient kind of violations that by the time we

         19  got there, the guy is two miles away.  So, again, we

         20  have had to work with the NYPD and by our own staff

         21  in posting officers, noise inspectors at different

         22  locations with the NYPD at different locations

         23  around the City to sort of crack down on this.

         24                 Now one could envision this happening

         25  in the theater district, or in other venues where
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          2  performances are held in the City, but it is not

          3  realistic.  I mean if there was a repetitive

          4  theater, let's say, space A, that every night had a

          5  performance and was disrupted every night, I do not

          6  know if that is the common occurrence in every

          7  performance space, that every night, night after

          8  night.

          9                 But like a noisy bar, we do know they

         10  are playing the music too loud, we get out there and

         11  we try to enforce.

         12                 Some of these violations, by their

         13  nature, are very transient and hard to get to.  I

         14  will not go into the ice cream trucks.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I certainly

         16  am not encouraging NYPD to be involved in

         17  enforcement of this, particularly, in movie theaters

         18  where a lot of black youth may come and use cell

         19  phones and create problems.  You know I am certainly

         20  not interested in NYPD's interaction in this.  But I

         21  do think, our Chairman, has a good point here in

         22  having and addressing this problem.  And it

         23  certainly is not a good idea to have management

         24  removing people from the theaters.  If you ever want

         25  to see a conflict, then you try having management
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          2  and some young people at a theater and saying, I

          3  heard your cell phone, get out, I think you would

          4  have a real problem.

          5                 So what you are suggesting, I think,

          6  is even worse.

          7                 MR. STURCKEN:  Well I just suggest

          8  that as - -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  But I do

         10  think, - -

         11                 MR. STURCKEN: - -  if you played out

         12  this for our enforcement efforts, - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Let me just

         14  finish my point.

         15                 MR. STURCKEN: - -  no one wants to

         16  get where you are - -

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Let me finish

         18  my point before you answer.  I am just saying with

         19  all of that, that I think that if it is treated like

         20  the smoking prohibited law, if it is treated like

         21  some other noise pollution laws, that this could be

         22  a bill that, and we look over enforcement issues

         23  around it, which is a real concern of mine, because

         24  I do not want any extra interaction with the law

         25  enforcement, and in particularly, black and Latino
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          2  youth at theaters.  But I would like to see some way

          3  this behavior could be curbed, and I think the

          4  Chairman is moving in the right direction, at least,

          5  in addressing it and having some kind of legislation

          6  that speaks to allowing consumers in theaters to

          7  have a peaceful experience in witnessing

          8  performances.

          9                 So I think the enforcement things can

         10  be worked out, and the definition of public

         11  performances can be worked out further, and this

         12  could be a bill that would be good for this City,

         13  and I think you should reconsider your opposition to

         14  it.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  We have also been

         17  joined by Council Member John Liu and James Davis,

         18  both members of the Committee.  And I also wanted to

         19  take a moment to introduce Deborah Brown, the

         20  Attorney to this Committee.  And introduce the

         21  Committee members to Veronica McNeal, who is sitting

         22  somewhere, right over here, stand up so everybody

         23  can see you Veronica, I will embarrass you right off

         24  the bat, thank you.  She is now the staff to this

         25  Committee, so she will be working with all of us.
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          2  Thank you, welcome.

          3                 Council Member Koppell, you had a

          4  question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Do you

          6  recommend, Commissioner (sic), that we repeal all

          7  laws that are difficult to enforce, and that are

          8  perhaps only enforced in relatively rare occasions?

          9                 MR. STURCKEN:  No, I certainly would

         10  not characterize those laws, which are on the books,

         11  whether the state or the city, that may seem

         12  unenforceable, to remove, no, certainly not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So you would

         14  concede, would you not, that there are many laws

         15  that are difficult to enforced or perhaps not so

         16  important as to divert police manpower, but they

         17  still are on the books, like the smoking laws and

         18  spitting on the sidewalk and jaywalking, - -

         19                 MR. STURCKEN:  Spitting on the

         20  sidewalk is a good example, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: - -  And

         22  things like that?

         23                 MR. STURCKEN:  No, these are all

         24  quality of life problems in the City.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Did you ever

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  tear a label off a mattress, even though it says on

          3  the label that tearing the label off the mattress is

          4  a violation of law?

          5                 MR. STURCKEN:  I have not had the

          6  pleasure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But if you

          8  had, wouldn't you feel badly about it?

          9                 MR. STURCKEN:  I do not know, words

         10  cannot express that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:   Well I must

         12  say since childhood, I have felt guilty about

         13  tearing one of those labels off the mattress,

         14  because I think I am not dissimilar from many other

         15  people, do not want to disobey the law, even though

         16  it is a minor law.  I never understood the reason

         17  why I could not tear that label off the mattress,

         18  but that is what it said, it was against the law.

         19                 So the fact that it is in the law,

         20  and that we could put on a sign in the theater that

         21  it is against the law, and that the theater owner or

         22  his agents could tell people, stop doing that, it is

         23  against the law.  Don't you think that will have

         24  influence with a lot of people beyond merely being

         25  impolite?
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          2                 MR. STURCKEN:  Well I think people

          3  are law- abiding, yes, I think most people are law-

          4  abiding.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So making it

          6  a law would have some force, at least, with a

          7  significant number of people, even though your

          8  enforcement officers could rarely enforce it.

          9                 MR. STURCKEN:  Yes, I think the

         10  perception of that in the law, and the sign

         11  reiterating that it is against the law, does have

         12  effect on the public.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well that is

         14  why we want to do it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

         16  Davis.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  Thank you so

         18  much.  As a retired police officer, who has had to

         19  enforce violations, harassment, for example, is a

         20  violation.  If a person slaps someone with an open

         21  hand, it is harassment, the police officer has to

         22  witness the slap, it is a difference between whether

         23  your hand is open slap, or your hand is closed that

         24  determines whether a police office can make the

         25  arrest.  So I understand of the concept of the
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          2  violation.

          3                 When Chairman Phil Reed introduced

          4  this, I was torn, because I was torn because the

          5  thought of police and persons in a movie theater,

          6  and I cannot stand when people talk in a movie

          7  theater, I cannot stand the talking, the cell phone,

          8  I just do not like it, I like to enjoy my movie.

          9  But, I think Olive Koppell raises a good point about

         10  just because it is on the books and just because I

         11  have concerns about policing African- American,

         12  Hispanic, and even white youth, using a phone, and I

         13  have concerns about that.  I can see the benefit of

         14  it being posted that says it is against the law.

         15                 Could, instead of it being against, I

         16  am going to differ with my colleague, Charles

         17  Barron, in this respect, could, instead of it being

         18  against the law, something be said that in case you

         19  use a cell phone, you may be forced to leave the

         20  premises, signs posted?

         21                 You know going to so many movies and

         22  seeing so much staff that is not professional, I am

         23  afraid of interaction.  It is a sad fact, I am just

         24  so afraid.  I think that is why maybe you were even

         25  concerned about saying you are against the
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          2  legislation. Some of us are concerned about the - -

          3                 MR. STURCKEN:  We are, as we began

          4  the testimony, we said this is a very laudable

          5  effort by the Council to curb, you know,

          6  disrespectful behavior to the performance artists,

          7  to the space you are in.  I think one of the

          8  analogies we can draw upon is, when you go to a

          9  baseball game, you witness a lot of unruly behavior

         10  in the stadium, and they have tried to stop that in

         11  recent years, but it took a huge law enforcement

         12  effort and private enforcement effort by the owners

         13  of the stadium.  And it is always announced that you

         14  will be ejected if you engage in any behavior that,

         15  by them, is considered disruptive or running on the

         16  field or throwing things, but it is a huge

         17  enforcement effort for those owners.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  It is very, -

         19   -

         20                 MR. STURCKEN:  Difficult.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS:  It is just

         22  depending on who the Mayor is, depending on the task

         23  force, I can, my fear is that there would be an NYPD

         24  Task Force assigned to targeting as a retired police

         25  officer of 12 years, 3 months and 26 days, assigned
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          2  to going after individuals and what neighborhoods

          3  they would be targeting.  But on the same token, it

          4  is a very, it is an issue that needs to be

          5  addressed, because I do not know if it quite reaches

          6  the level, I know it is rude, but I do not know if

          7  it quite reaches a level of a violation, and maybe

          8  it does.  I commend Chairman Reed and this Council

          9  for bringing this topic to discussion.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Seeing no other

         11  questions, thank you, Mr. Sturcken.

         12                 MR. STURCKEN:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  We have also now

         14  been joined by our colleague, Gale Brewer from

         15  Manhattan.  Just across from the 96th Street Divide

         16  from this Chair.  Nice to have you Gale.

         17                 I am going to call several witnesses

         18  at the same time, Robert Sunshine, Barbara Janowitz,

         19  and Carol Waaser, I hope I said that right.  Okay,

         20  you can help me when we pronounce it up here.  Mr.

         21  Sunshine had asked to be recognized first.  Please,

         22  have a seat, Mr. Sunshine is in opposition.  State

         23  your name for the record.

         24                 MR. SUNSHINE:  My name is Robert

         25  Sunshine.  I am the Executive Director of the
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          2  National Association of Theater Owners of New York

          3  State.  Our organization represents most of the

          4  movie theaters throughout the City of New York, the

          5  five boroughs and throughout the State of New York.

          6  I appreciate that we have the opportunity to come

          7  before the Committee to testify and make some

          8  comments with regard to Intro. 257.

          9                 Indeed, cell phones is a major

         10  problem in movie theaters.  It is becoming more of a

         11  problem as more and more children and parents carry

         12  cell phones into theaters, just as more and more

         13  citizens of the City of New York and of the country

         14  carry cell phones.  In an effort to make our

         15  theaters more of a stable environment, in terms of

         16  making it a good experience for our attendees, most

         17  of our theaters right now post signs in the theater,

         18  as you either come to the box office or literally

         19  enter the auditorium that say, please, turn off your

         20  cell phones.

         21                 Many of the theaters that we

         22  represent in this City even have public statement

         23  policies up on the screen either in the form of

         24  slides or rolling stock, actual film, and these are

         25  called policy trailers.  And just as we put trailers
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          2  up on the screen that say, please, throw your trash

          3  out in the receptacles, please do not talk, please

          4  do not litter, now many of our theaters are putting

          5  up, please turn off your cell phones.  So although

          6  we are sensitive to this issue, and we would like to

          7  see this curbed, we feel that the legislation, at

          8  this point now, has several problems with us.

          9                 The first problem that was addressed

         10  by the first speaker was the enforcement of it.  We

         11  feel that management and owners of theaters cannot

         12  be in the position to enforce this regulation.  The

         13  interaction between ushers and management with

         14  sometimes unstable patrons in theaters can create

         15  terrible, terrible scenes.  We have no problems

         16  going over to people and telling them to turn off

         17  the phones and we do, do that.  But if it was

         18  legislated, we would have to enforced this, we think

         19  it would create a major problem.

         20                 If the legislation was amended to

         21  include another provision, we would then support it,

         22  because we feel that we should do what we can to

         23  eliminate cell phones being used during

         24  performances.  The way the law is presently written

         25  now, it states, that cell phones are to be
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          2  prohibited from places of public performance.  We

          3  would love to see a distinction made, so that a

          4  child or a parent can come into a movie theater with

          5  a cell phone, turn it off, or have it on a vibrate

          6  mode.  And if there is a situation where a call does

          7  come through to them, where they are permitted to

          8  walk into an area of the theater, outside of the

          9  auditorium, in a lobby, or in an area where it does

         10  not interfere with the audience, so they can pick up

         11  and make the phone call.

         12                 We are, literally, I am also in the

         13  business of running conventions for the movie

         14  industry, and I deal with many equipment companies.

         15  We have one or two equipment companies in Europe

         16  that are presently toying with coming up with a

         17  system where we can literally put in a place of

         18  public performance in an auditorium that would block

         19  signals from coming into the auditorium, and

         20  literally block the possibility of a phone call

         21  coming in.  And as an industry we are looking into

         22  seeing if we could do that.

         23                 So although we are sensitive to what

         24  the Committee is trying to do and what the

         25  legislation does, we feel that in the way it is
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          2  presently written, we cannot support it.  However,

          3  if several changes are made, we would like to

          4  support it, and we do spend many, many dollars now

          5  in our budget to enforce it with our signage and our

          6  public policy trailers that go up on the screen.

          7                 I would be glad to answer any

          8  questions, if any of the Council members have any.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I think that that

         10  is a very good suggestion that you made.  In fact, I

         11  think that is really the intent, I do not think we

         12  had any intention of not letting people use it

         13  outside of the auditorium.  So I appreciate that.

         14                 But you said there were several

         15  suggestions, and I only heard that one specific one.

         16                 MR. SUNSHINE:  We, the other one is

         17  the enforcement issue.  I am not sure who we put the

         18  responsibility on, I just feel that the interaction

         19  with management, it would cause tremendous problems.

         20    I do feel that if signs were put up in movie

         21  theaters, and we would be glad to do it, that it is

         22  against the law to use cell phones in the

         23  auditorium, I truly believe that that would be a

         24  deterrent to a very good point.  Plus, I also feel

         25  that if our managers and ushers who are in the
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          2  theaters, can say to people that it is against the

          3  law, please turn it off.  I think that would also

          4  carry more weight than just saying that this is a

          5  policy of the theater, please, turn it off.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Do your theater,

          7  you represent the movie, it says 90 percent of the

          8  movie theaters, box offices here in the City.  And

          9  you are talking about trying to deal with unstable

         10  people, et cetera, is there any sort of training

         11  that is offered to the staff at these movie

         12  theaters, not obviously a deranged cell phone user,

         13  that is not the only person I am thinking about, but

         14  I mean - -

         15                 MR. SUNSHINE:  Most of the staff - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Do you give them

         17  some direction about how to handle situations like

         18  that both during and after the performance or the

         19  movies, or the screening?

         20                 MR. SUNSHINE:  The larger movie

         21  theater circuits that are operating in the City of

         22  New York, such as Loews Cineplex Entertainment,

         23  Regal Cinemas, which presently operates United

         24  Artists, National Amusements, which is the Red Stone

         25  Circuit, and City Cinemas and Clearview Cinemas,
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          2  which are the largest circuits in the area, all have

          3  manuals and training policies for management and

          4  people who work in the theaters.  This would be

          5  another thing that we could possibly add to it with

          6  regard to cell phones, if a law was passed.  But

          7  absolutely our people are trained on how to deal

          8  with customers, how to deal with irate customers.

          9  And again, our problem with the way this is worded,

         10  if in fact, this fell upon on our management to

         11  enforce, we think it could cause quite a problem.

         12  We certainly want to work with the City in

         13  projecting the law, in putting it into our theaters

         14  so people are aware of it and would work with you in

         15  any way possible to do that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Council Member

         17  Barron.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just wanted

         19  to comment on a couple of things that you have said.

         20    I think you are hitting, getting at the heart of

         21  what the intent of what we are trying to achieve

         22  with this bill.  If there were some, the last thing

         23  I want to see is management trying to enforce, or

         24  law enforcement, definitely, does not need to be

         25  involved in this whatsoever in terms of enforcement.
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          2    And as I said earlier, I would not want to see

          3  that for many reasons, but particularly because of a

          4  lot of black and Latino youth going to theaters now.

          5    We just do not need that kind of mix- up with law

          6  enforcement.  I would not want to see that at all,

          7  and I do not think that this is what this bill is

          8  intending to do.

          9                 But saying that it is against the law

         10  and providing a space, if it is on vibrator, and say

         11  that you can go to a certain area to deal with

         12  emergencies, is a good resolution.  And I say that

         13  because I have been in theaters, if we do not get in

         14  control of this, the patrons will.  I have seen

         15  potential conflicts where people try to enforce it

         16  because they are annoyed and aggravated by it, that

         17  is what my main concern is, that the moviegoers who

         18  are opposed to the cell phones will try and yell

         19  out, hey, turn off the phone.  And you can get

         20  serious conflict occurring within the theater,

         21  itself, when moviegoers try themselves to enforce it

         22  because they have no help, nowhere else where they

         23  are getting any assistance with this.  And I think

         24  that that is at the heart of this bill, is trying to

         25  avoid the very conflict you are talking about with
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          2  management and moviegoers can happen amongst

          3  moviegoers who are trying, I have been in theaters

          4  where they try to enforce it themselves by dealing

          5  with the people who are dealing with the phones.

          6                 So I think some combination of what

          7  we are trying to do and some of your suggestions

          8  might be a good resolution to this.

          9                 MR. SUNSHINE:  We, I know that when I

         10  am driving an automobile, and there are signs

         11  flashing that you buckle up, it's the law; when I am

         12  in a restaurant and it says no smoking; I just think

         13  that communication signage is a tremendous

         14  deterrent.  And again, we applaud your efforts in

         15  what you are doing, it is a problem for us, we just

         16  hope that you would consider some of our, you know,

         17  problems in this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  We will and we

         19  will be reaching out to you as we amend it and look

         20  at some of the language.  So we appreciate your

         21  comments.

         22                 My colleagues, anybody else?  Council

         23  Member Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am glad my

         25  colleagues have so much time to go to the movies,
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          2  Council Member Barron, I am glad you have time.

          3                 The question I have is, in Europe,

          4  where there is blockage, it sounds like a good idea,

          5  but what happens if there was a doctor or somebody

          6  who needed an emergency call, how would that work in

          7  your, or maybe you do not know, but I was just

          8  curious?

          9                 MR. SUNSHINE:  They are experimenting

         10  this with this now.  And I am certain that many

         11  doctors who are on call do leave word where they

         12  are, could leave phone numbers of the theater. There

         13  are ways to do it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman.

         16                 MR. SUNSHINE:  Councilman Reed, the

         17  last statement that I would make is that the movie

         18  theater industry of New York will work very closely

         19  with you in this, and if a bill is passed that works

         20  with us, we would be glad to disseminate it on our

         21  screens to the entire population of the City of New

         22  York and work with you to disseminate that

         23  information.

         24                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         25  testify.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very

          3  much.  In no particular order, okay, please

          4  introduce your self?

          5                 MS. JANOWITZ:  My name is Barbara

          6  Janowitz with the League of American Theaters and

          7  Producers, the trade association for the Broadway

          8  theater industry.

          9                 Mr. Chairman and Committee members,

         10  thank you for the opportunity to testify today on

         11  behalf of the Broadway theaters in support of the

         12  proposed legislation to prohibit the use of cell

         13  phones in places of public performance.  Mr.

         14  Chairman, we thank you for sponsoring this important

         15  measure.

         16                 In recent years, cell phones have

         17  replaced rustling candy wrappers, coughing and

         18  conversation as the single most disruptive audience

         19  disturbance in our theaters.  Countless times each

         20  week in countless Broadway houses, the shrill ring

         21  of an audience member's cell phone interrupts the

         22  mood that is created by theater artists.  And

         23  intimate moment between two actors on stage, a

         24  poignantly rendered ballad by the musical's heroine,

         25  the show stopping eleven o'clock number, all of
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          2  these moments are ruined by cell phones for the rest

          3  of the audience and the performers on stage.

          4                 Last month, I sat mesmerized by the

          5  performances of Edie Falco and Stanley Tucci during

          6  the opening night of Frankie and Johnny in the

          7  Claire de Lune, a current Broadway show, only to

          8  have their extraordinary artistry shattered by the

          9  ringing of a cell phone, and this was at an opening

         10  night.

         11                 The damage to the art created on

         12  stage is palpable, incredibly thoughtless to both

         13  the audience, who, as you know, may have paid

         14  upwards of $80 to $100 or more for their ticket, and

         15  to the actors who work so hard night after night for

         16  the audience's benefit and pleasure.  The mood is

         17  broken, the audience abruptly loses the threat of

         18  the player musical, forgetting that they have been

         19  transported elsewhere, to New York City in the

         20  1920s, or Paris in the 1800s, or the Oklahoma

         21  territory.  The actors lose their link to their

         22  characters and have to fight to remember their place

         23  in the script and regain the special bond they

         24  forged with the audience.

         25                 It is apparently not enough to make a
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          2  curtain announcement asking the audience to turn off

          3  their cell phones. Virtually every show as such an

          4  announcement before each performance, and sometimes

          5  after intermission as well, but to little or no

          6  avail.  This is why we support a legislative

          7  prohibition on cell phone usage.  Only the fear of

          8  violating the law will add enough teeth to such an

          9  announcement.  It will make a huge difference to be

         10  able to say it is against the law in New York City

         11  to use a cell phone in a theater before each

         12  performance.

         13                 Since theater lobbies are crowded,

         14  rushed and small, however, we do urge that theaters

         15  will be permitted to decide the best way to notify

         16  the public of this restriction, not relying in

         17  signage alone, either by means of an announcement,

         18  or signs, or printed materials, or other means of

         19  communication.

         20                 We applaud the sponsor and the

         21  Committee for taking on this public nuisance,and

         22  would like to support you in any way we can.  The

         23  ringing of cell phones has ruined too many

         24  theatrical performances for too many people,

         25  audiences and performers alike. It is time to work
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          2  together to put an end to it.

          3                 Thank you for allowing me to express

          4  the theater industry's feelings on this matter.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.  Any

          6  questions? Council Member Liu.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chair.  I guess, my feeling is that anybody who does

          9  use a cell phone, talk and listen into a cell phone

         10  during a live performance, or movie, or any other

         11  public performance, probably understands that they

         12  are being inconsiderate.  Would you agree with that,

         13  or do you think there are people that just do not

         14  even know that they are being inconsiderate?

         15                 MS. JANOWITZ:  Respectfully, Council

         16  member, I think that they are being careless in some

         17  cases.  I think people go out at intermission and

         18  talk on a cell phone and forget to turn it off, even

         19  though they might hear an announcement.  And I

         20  think, my colleagues and I do feel that the

         21  announcement that says, it is now against the law to

         22  do so, will have some more teeth.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I guess, with

         24  all due respect, I certainly, I get annoyed very

         25  much when people speak on the phone at public
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          2  performances, on the buses and trains, they are just

          3  annoying.  But as much as we would like to, I think

          4  it is very difficult to legislate against

          5  inconsiderate jerks.  And this is New York City and

          6  we, unfortunately, have our share of inconsiderate

          7  jerks.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you, John.

         10  Your question that you asked, I just do not think

         11  that people are aware of their behavior, I just

         12  don't, in a lot of instances.  And I think sometimes

         13  pointing it out to people, particularly young people

         14  who emulate a lot of the behavior they see of us.

         15  It just like littering, I think they just do not

         16  understand what that is.  If it is just pointed out

         17  to them, they usually respond in a positive way.

         18  So, I do not take for granted that people understand

         19  what public behavior is.

         20                 Thank you very much for your

         21  testimony.

         22                 MS. WAASER:  Good morning, Chairman

         23  Reed and members of the Committee.  My name is Carol

         24  Waaser.  I am the Eastern Regional Director of

         25  Actors' Equity Association, the labor union of
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          2  professional actors and stage managers in live

          3  theater.

          4                 On behalf of the 16,000 plus Equity

          5  members who live and work in the New York

          6  Metropolitan area, I speak in support of the concept

          7  of Intro. 257, which prohibits the use of mobile

          8  phones and beepers in places of public performance.

          9  Many of you have personally experienced from an

         10  audience point of view, the distraction of a cell

         11  phone or beeper going off in the middle of a

         12  performance.  Imagine how much more disturbing it is

         13  to a performer.  The moment the ringing starts, the

         14  actors concentration is shattered, making it

         15  difficult to remember lines or maintain the mood of

         16  the scene.  And then as the actor tries to continue,

         17  tries to reconstruct the fragments of that scene, he

         18  realizes that the audience is no longer with him,

         19  busying itself instead with shushing the offender.

         20                 Bad enough when it is just the ring,

         21  which nowadays is more likely to be the first

         22  movement of a Bach contarta (phonetic), but we have

         23  now reached such a height of rudeness in our society

         24  that people have actually been answering their

         25  phones and holding conversations in the middle of
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          2  performances.  This simply must stop.  And though I

          3  believe ultimately the answer lies in having a well-

          4  funded Arts in Education program in our schools to

          5  teach public etiquette to our future audiences, for

          6  now we can but hope to stop the offenders by

          7  attaching a stiff penalty to the crime.

          8                 I hope the Council will also consider

          9  methods of enforcement with this proposed

         10  legislation, since I do not envision having police

         11  officers in attendance at every performance.

         12  Without enforcement, the offenses will continue.

         13  Currently, announcements are made at every

         14  performance reminding the audience to turn off

         15  beepers and cell phones.  Some theaters put bold

         16  notices in their programs, all to no avail.  Unless

         17  the offenders are convinced that they will occur

         18  some penalty, they will continue to ignore the

         19  announcements and notices.  Perhaps with additional

         20  announcements that it is now against the law, people

         21  will become more aware and more willing to comply.

         22                 I would, however, caution that

         23  enforcement not become an even greater disturbance

         24  than the ring or beep itself. I hope you will seek

         25  input not only from the producers, but also from the
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          2  Ushers and Front of House unions, less this cure

          3  become worse than the illness.

          4                 But representing professional stage

          5  actors in this great city, I urge the Council to

          6  continue to work on this legislation and pass a

          7  piece of law that works for our theaters.

          8                 Thank you for allowing me to appear.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you, Ms.

         10  Waaser.  Actually, Ms. Janowitz, could you join us

         11  again, because I had a couple of questions I wanted

         12  to ask you, but I wanted to hear all the testimony.

         13                 Could you, Ms. Janowitz, speak a

         14  little bit to the issue of enforcement, and how do

         15  the theater managers, I guess that is who is most

         16  directly responsible, handle disruptions, et cetera,

         17  et cetera, now, what your thinking might be?  I

         18  mean, you have heard from some other people the

         19  concerns that they have.  It may be a slightly

         20  different audience, but could you speak to that

         21  please?

         22                 MS. JANOWITZ:  Certainly.  I do not

         23  know for certain what the adequate enforcement

         24  policy might be in a case like this. I do believe it

         25  would be hard and difficult for it to be left to the
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          2  theater management to enforce.  I think as the

          3  representative from Actors' Equity has said, the

          4  enforcement of this policy could be just as

          5  disruptive as the actual ringing of the cell phone

          6  or the beeping of the beeper, so I am concerned.  I

          7  think it is something that we would be very happy,

          8  though, to continue to discuss with the Committee

          9  and work together in coming up with an adequate

         10  enforcement policy.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  It has been

         12  suggested that people should turn in their cell

         13  phones before they go to the theater.

         14                 MS. JANOWITZ:  It works in high

         15  schools.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Any other

         17  questions?  Council Member Addabbo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair. Actually, just a somewhat related

         20  question.  I am looking at the actual Intro. And I

         21  am seeing, you know, place of public performance.

         22  Mr. Chair, a question, do you think somebody could

         23  broadly interpret a place of public performance to

         24  include Council Chambers during Stated Council

         25  meetings and Committee meetings, maybe?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  I would certainly

          3  support that as an amendment, Council Member

          4  Addabbo, because some of the behavior that Council

          5  Member Liu was speaking about, we have all witnessed

          6  right here, and I am not sure what our colleagues

          7  think, or do, or know.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Yes, because

          9  I was looking, you know, rooms where they have

         10  performances, you know, this could be in lectures,

         11  educational, and cultural, I mean, this could be a

         12  place.

         13                 MS. WAASER:  But be careful, you

         14  might have to join my union.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Oh, boy.

         16  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you, I am

         18  glad you raised the point, thank you very much.

         19  Thank you, both.

         20                 Is George Elmer here?  Mr. Elmer, if

         21  you would see one of the Sergeant- At- Arms, you

         22  need to sign in, and then we will have you come and

         23  testify.  David Diamond, please join us, and Robin

         24  Poulos.  Mr. Diamond.

         25                 MR. DIAMOND:  Thank you.  Good
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          2  morning.  My name is David Diamond, and I am the

          3  Chair of the Arts Culture Tourism and Times Square

          4  Committee of Manhattan Community Board #5.  Our

          5  Board covers the central business district of

          6  Manhattan from 14th to 59th Streets between 5th and

          7  8th Avenues.

          8                 While Community Board #5 has not

          9  taken an official position on this bill, my

         10  Committee and the Board's Executive Committee have

         11  discussed the bill and we wish to offer the

         12  following comments:

         13                 Community Board #5 includes the

         14  Broadway Theater District with its dozens of

         15  theaters along with major entertainment venues from

         16  Madison Square Garden to Radio City Music Hall,

         17  movie theaters and other places of public assembly.

         18  We are keenly aware of the annoyance created by cell

         19  phones, beepers, pagers, and other electronic

         20  devices, which interrupt performances, disturb

         21  audiences, and disrupt the concentration of

         22  performing artists.

         23                 On the whole, while we think the

         24  proposed legislation should be unnecessary, we agree

         25  that a strong statement that reinforces our belief
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          2  that patrons and artists should not be subjected to

          3  such disturbances is appropriate.

          4                 Our questions about the proposed bill

          5  are as follows:

          6                 1.  The bill state that talking on

          7  cell phones is prohibited.  It does not mention the

          8  disruption caused by them ringing, beeping or

          9  buzzing.  Why is this not included in the bill?

         10                 2.  The bill does not mention

         11  specifically outdoor performance spaces.  What are

         12  the rules for these types of performance venues?

         13                 3.  With regard to signage, would it

         14  be equally appropriate for a theater to elect to

         15  place a prominent notice in a free program each

         16  patron receives at an event, instead of posting a

         17  sign in the lobby, or in addition to that?

         18                 4.  How would such a law be enforced?

         19    Would police have to be present at a performance

         20  and see the infraction personally?  Would employees

         21  of a particular venue have the power to issue

         22  summonses?  It seems like a very difficult law to

         23  enforce. What teeth does it have, if it is not

         24  enforceable?

         25                 We appreciate the Council's attempt
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          2  to address a complicated problem and look forward to

          3  commenting on any future drafts of the proposed

          4  legislation.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.  That

          7  is Community Board #5, and that is Council Member

          8  Quinn in that area as well.

          9                 MR. DIAMOND:  Yes, that is right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very

         11  much.  Ms. Poulos, is it?

         12                 MS. POULOS:  Yes.  I am Robin Poulos.

         13    I live in the Upper East Side of Manhattan, and I

         14  am an avid theatergoer with my husband to ballets,

         15  opera, movie theaters, as well as to Broadway

         16  performances.  And I can personally testify the fact

         17  that it is extremely disruptive when people have

         18  their cell phones ringing, speak on their cell

         19  phones.  And I think I am not quite as sympathetic

         20  as some of the other people here, and I do not think

         21  that people do not realize that they should not be

         22  doing this, they are being rude or inconsiderate, I

         23  think that people are fairly well aware of that.

         24                 I do understand and have been in

         25  situations where it is necessary to have a cell
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          2  phone on vibrate function, so if you are expecting

          3  potential emergency phone call, you see that it

          4  comes in and then can excuse yourself to a location

          5  where you will not disrupt anybody.

          6                 But I have been at performances of

          7  ballet where there is a beautiful solo going on, on

          8  stage, and the dancer, you can tell, pauses in mid-

          9  performance trying to figure out what is going on

         10  and losing their place.  And I think it is

         11  disruptive to everybody who is watching the

         12  performance, and I can imagine what it must be like

         13  for the person on the stage.  I think it is

         14  particularly disruptive for live performances,

         15  because you are disrupting the audience as well as

         16  the people who are on stage and have worked very

         17  hard to put together their performance, and are

         18  trying to, you know, take part in something as

         19  extremely difficult to do.  I also think it is

         20  disruptive in movie theaters.

         21                 I think that there are many laws on

         22  the books right now that are difficult to enforce,

         23  you know, picking up after your dogs, things like

         24  that.  If you do not see someone do it, you know, it

         25  is difficult for a policeman or for someone from the
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          2  EPA, whatever, to deal with that.  But I do think

          3  that knowing that it is law, does make people a bit

          4  more responsible.  I think that just it being an

          5  inconsiderate act, I do not think that many New

          6  Yorkers necessarily will follow along with that.

          7  But if they do think that there is potential arrest,

          8  that they could be seen doing this by someone and

          9  would have to pay a fine, will have to be singled

         10  out and will have to go through the humiliation of

         11  dealing with that, I think, will, at least, limit

         12  the number of people that continue to do this.

         13  Although, I doubt that it would curb it entirely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you.  Mr.

         15  Elmer.                        MR. ELMER:  Thank you,

         16  Sir.  My name is George Elmer.  I am a member of the

         17  Association of Theatrical Press Agents and Managers.

         18    Through September 1st of this year, I have just

         19  completed managing Broadway theaters for five and a

         20  half years. Over that period of time, we went from

         21  initially an occasional nuisance, once, maybe even

         22  twice a week.

         23                 I just came off of doing the

         24  Philmonte, once, twice, three times an act, not a

         25  performance.  It is getting ridiculous.
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          2                 And after Ms. Waaser spoke, I

          3  actually wanted to say, she said everything I needed

          4  to say, I do not need to testify, except in one

          5  instance.  And that was Mr. Liu said people are

          6  jerks, and he is absolutely correct, you cannot stop

          7  a jerk from being a jerk.  They are self- centered,

          8  nobody else on the face of the earth matters, it is

          9  what they want when they want it.  The only way you

         10  are going to curb them is to have a law.

         11                 In all due difference, the EPA, if it

         12  is not enforceable, who cares.  If a manager or a

         13  police officer can say, it is against the law, knock

         14  it off, get out, they are going to pay attention.  I

         15  certainly would not encourage any amending of this

         16  particular legislation that would give either

         17  management, the EPA, the Police Department, the Fire

         18  Department, the ability to make the situation 20

         19  times worse than it already is.  But I do think

         20  where signage is posted that it is against the law,

         21  and the law is enforced in this establishment, it

         22  will greatly reduce the misuse of cell phones.

         23                 Thank you very much for your time and

         24  attention.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  Thank you very
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          2  much.  I think what we have heard from your

          3  testimony and others today, and the responses that

          4  we have got is that the theater community, the

          5  people engaged professionally in the business are

          6  uniformly in support of this legislation, as Ms.

          7  Poulos and others have talked about in terms of the

          8  interference to the performers, themselves, but also

          9  just in terms of the professional staff.  I mean

         10  there is something that has been created not just by

         11  the performers, but by everyone that is involved,

         12  and this is just a complete disruption of that.  And

         13  I do think that there are some distinctions, the

         14  difference obviously from the movie to live

         15  performance, but it is still an interference then of

         16  the audience.  How you deal with it, how much of it

         17  is a problem in both, in those two different

         18  environments, I think, there are not going to be two

         19  different laws, but I think there are some nuances

         20  to what we have heard today from what you said as

         21  opposed to the larger issue in the theaters.

         22                 But I appreciate that the industry,

         23  both the industry, and especially the performers

         24  have come forward.  There was a lot of speculation

         25  when we first introduced this legislation that
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          2  people would not step forward and talk about it.  So

          3  I appreciate that you are here, and so many people

          4  have been represented who are in the business, to

          5  say that they are supportive of what it is that we

          6  are trying to do.  Because this is not, you know, a

          7  quality of life issue, it is not the most important

          8  thing that we are struggling with here in the City,

          9  but it is real, it is a quality of life issue that I

         10  think people will be supportive of when we come to

         11  some final language of the bill. So, I just wanted

         12  to thank all of you for coming and being here today.

         13                 I do not think there are any

         14  questions, so thank you very much.

         15                 We have, there are no other people

         16  signed up to testify, is there anybody else here

         17  that was interested in testifying today?

         18                 Just in terms of my colleagues, our

         19  General Counsel here, Deborah Brown and I have been

         20  looking over some of this, and we do have to change

         21  the definition of use, and we want to look at the

         22  revision of performance space, I guess, the

         23  definition of performance space, which I think the

         24  intention is to exclude sporting arenas and outside

         25  theaters.  And to try to define a little more
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          2  clearly the performance, the time of performance,

          3  and so if people need to use the phone in the lobby

          4  et cetera, that that would be permissible.

          5                 So those are some other ideas that

          6  have been offered up, and we are going to look at

          7  amending this. And I would hope that by, where are

          8  we today, by the early part of October we will be

          9  having a second and perhaps final hearing on that

         10  piece of legislation, and anticipate a vote then.

         11                 So, unless I see anybody else with

         12  comments, I want to thank everybody for coming.

         13  This hearing is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing was adjourned at 11:25 a.m.)

         15                 (The following testimony was read

         16  into the record.)

         17

         18  Testimony of:

         19  Eleanor R. Goldhar

         20  Executive Officer, External Affairs

         21  92nd Street Y

         22

         23                 Dear Mr. Reed:

         24                 Thank you for your invitation to

         25  present our views regarding revisions to the
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          2  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

          3  relation to prohibiting the use of mobile telephones

          4  in places of public performance.  We will not be

          5  able to attend the hearing on September 24, 2002 and

          6  in lieu of that opportunity, Deborah Brown informed

          7  me that a written letter of support would be

          8  welcome.

          9                 The 92nd Street Year has a number of

         10  performance venues, two at our main location [1395

         11  Lexington Avenue] And two at our location at the

         12  Steinhardt Building [35 West 67th Street.]  All

         13  performance venues have signs posted to ask patrons

         14  to turn off cell phones, pagers, watches that beep

         15  or anything else that might disturb performers or

         16  other members of the audience.  We also make

         17  announcements from the stage before all performances

         18  and repeat written prohibitions in our printed

         19  programs.

         20                 We would support any initiative that

         21  would curtail inappropriate interruptions of our

         22  performances.  However, as I expressed to Ms. Brown,

         23  we are not in a position to enforced any legislation

         24  that would require us to take action against a

         25  patron. WE have sophisticated security in place and
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          2  excellent ushering staff who are well versed in

          3  dealing with noisy patrons.

          4                 On behalf of the 92nd Street Y, I

          5  wish you and your Committee success in this

          6  initiative.  Please keep us informed as to your

          7  progress on the legislation.

          8                 Yours truly,

          9                 Eleanor R. Goldhar

         10                 Executive Office, External Affairs

         11

         12  Testimony of:

         13  Thomas E. Wheeler

         14  President/CEO

         15  Cellular Telecommunications & Internet Association

         16  (CTIA)

         17

         18                 Dear Council Member Reed:

         19                 The Committee on Consumer Affairs is

         20  considering legislation to bands the use of wireless

         21  phones in "places of public performance."  The

         22  wireless industry believes that such an ordinance

         23  would be bad public policy, that enforcement would

         24  be more disruptive than theaters' current policies,

         25  and no matter how laudable the goal, the City cannot
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          2  legislate courtesy and common sense.

          3                 CTIA does not defending the

          4  inconsiderate use of wireless phones, but we do

          5  believe that the root cause of the problem lies with

          6  the user, and not with the technology.  Wireless

          7  phones are part of a long list of potentially

          8  inconsiderate behavior, a list that includes talking

          9  during performances, singing aloud (except when

         10  sanctioned, such as at annual performances of The

         11  Messiah), unwrapping candy and cough drops during a

         12  performance, and even attending a public performance

         13  when suffering from a cough or allergy.  Unlike

         14  these other disturbances, wireless phones complaint

         15  equipped with a "silent ring" feature and permit

         16  audiences to attend performances knowing that in

         17  case of need, baby sitters can contact parents,

         18  patients can reach their physicians, and customers

         19  and clients may call their contacts after hours.

         20  The alternative to receiving these important calls

         21  is for parents, medical professionals and business

         22  men and women to avoid places of public performance

         23  and remain tethered to their phone to avoid missing

         24  the rare, but potentially life- threatening,

         25  emergency call. This benefits neither theaters nor
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          2  the public.

          3                 Before every performance, theaters in

          4  New York City, and around the country, routinely

          5  reminded their patrons to mute their wireless phones

          6  and pagers, unwrap candy and cough drops before the

          7  curtain rises, and not talk during the performance.

          8  This reminds patrons to be considerate of their

          9  fellow audience members, and allows places of public

         10  performance to handle rude behavior in the least

         11  disruptive manner possible.

         12                 Enforcement of the proposed ordinance

         13  would require theater personnel (or audience

         14  members) to summoned the police to write a citations

         15  for the offending theater patron, a process which we

         16  know from sporting events is much more disruptive

         17  than the original altercation or act of rudeness.

         18  Such practical difficulties make the proposed

         19  ordinance effectively unenforceable, and of

         20  questionable utility in changing people's behavior.

         21  CTIA supports common sense, but not an ordinance

         22  that attempts to legislate common sense.

         23                 The inconsiderate use of wireless

         24  technologies can be best addressed without resort to

         25  ineffective governmental mandates.  Wireless devices
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          2  need not be disruptive in public settings.  For

          3  instance, a wireless customer may silently receive

          4  text messages or set their phone to "vibrate" or

          5  silent modes, eliminating the most common

          6  disruptions.  In emergencies, when wireless users

          7  must respond to a voice communication, they can go

          8  to private locations away from the public

          9  performance such as the lobby of theater without

         10  causing any more disruption than a trip to the rest

         11  room.  There are also many instances when wireless

         12  phone conversations could take place without ever

         13  being distinguished from any other type of

         14  conversation.  For example, the noise level at many

         15  popular concerts and sporting events is such that

         16  people are able to communicate on their phones

         17  without disturbing those around them.  The proposed

         18  ordinance does not make any such distinctions, thus

         19  prohibiting all wireless conversations in a very

         20  broadly defined "place of public performance."

         21                 Wireless etiquette and general

         22  courtesy towards others when using a wireless phone

         23  are important.  They are no different than the

         24  common courtesy one should show others at all times.

         25    The wireless industry believes this is a matter of
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          2  common sense, not a matter that must be legislated

          3  and enforced by law enforcement or public safety

          4  personnel.  The public can and should be reminded

          5  about the responsible use of wireless devices.

          6  Indeed, there is evidence that the public is

          7  responding to such messages. However, no matter how

          8  laudable, matters of etiquette and enforcement are

          9  best left to individuals and the management of

         10  public establishments.  Just as no one would attempt

         11  to criminalize speaking or coughing in the middle of

         12  a performance, attempts to legislate the responsible

         13  use of wireless technology is equally misplaced.

         14                 Very truly yours,

         15                 Thomas E. Wheeler.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 11:25 a.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 24th day of September 2002.
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         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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